

From: [Lapustea, Florin](#)
To: [Banwait, Manjit](#); [Tom, Vivian](#)
Cc: [Khattab, Zahi](#); [Zenk, Jessica](#)
Subject: Fw: [EXTERNAL] LTA Improvement Project Conditions
Date: Thursday, April 15, 2021 5:22:01 PM
Attachments: [Google - DW - COA re LTA triggers.docx](#)

FYI

Florin Lapustea, P.E.

Senior Engineer - DOT Development Review
City of San Jose ~ City Hall
200 E. Santa Clara St., 8th Floor
San Jose, CA 95113
Cell: 408-705-5209

From: Amanda Wolf <amandawolf@google.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 15, 2021 5:15 PM
To: Tu, John <john.tu@sanjoseca.gov>; Lapustea, Florin <Florin.Lapustea@sanjoseca.gov>
Subject: Fwd: [EXTERNAL] LTA Improvement Project Conditions

[External Email]

John & Florin,

Word version of the LTA Improvement language - no changes from the pdf, just a different format.

Thank you,
Amanda



Amanda Wolf |
Development Manager
Working for Lendlease at Google
Sunnyvale, CA |
628-240-4111

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

LTA Triggers DA/CoA Language

As a result of the Local Transportation Analysis prepared by Fehr & Peers, dated July 2020, and included as Appendix J2 to the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the Project, City and Developer have (i) identified certain "LTA Improvements Projects" to which Developer will contribute, through a combination of construction and financial contributions, and (ii) agreed that Developer may undertake additional traffic or intersection analysis for the City and/or County that could identify additional potential improvements; the combined contribution value for (i) and (ii) shall not exceed thirty million dollars (\$30,000,000) (the "Total Contribution Value"), subject to escalation based on the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index. As detailed in the LTA Construction and Financial Contributions table below, Developer will construct certain LTA Improvement Projects at an estimated total cost of up to seventeen million three hundred ten thousand dollars (\$17,310,000) (the "LTA Construction Contribution"), and Developer also will contribute an estimated total of twelve million six hundred ninety thousand dollars (\$12,690,000) toward the cost to construct other LTA Improvement Projects (the "LTA Financial Contribution").

In the event Developer's actual cost to construct an LTA Improvement Project is less than the estimated cost for that LTA Improvement Project reflected in the LTA Improvement Estimated Budget, either (a) Developer may allocate the balance of the estimated cost to its LTA Financial Contribution, or (b) Developer and City may mutually agree to allocate the balance (i) to another LTA Improvement Project identified in the LTA Improvement Estimated Budget, (ii) as a contribution toward transportation projects later identified in the Focused LTA, or (iii) as a contribution toward another transportation improvement(s) within the City. Such other transportation improvement(s) in the City, including any that may be identified under the Focused LTA, have not yet been identified and so are speculative, not reasonably foreseeable, and such improvements would be subject to separate review by that project's applicant pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, if required.

In the event Developer's actual cost to construct an LTA Improvement Project would exceed the estimated cost for that LTA Improvement Project reflected in the LTA Improvement Estimated Budget, Developer may draw from its LTA Financial Contribution, if available, to account for the higher cost, without penalty. If insufficient LTA Financial Contribution funds are available at the time the LTA Improvement Project is to be constructed by Developer, then either (a) the scope of the LTA Improvement Project shall be adjusted so that the actual cost does not exceed the estimated cost to construct the LTA Improvement Project as reflected in the LTA Improvement Estimated Budget, or, if that is not feasible, (b) Developer shall contribute (i) an amount equal to the estimated cost for the subject LTA Improvement Project toward the LTA Financial Contribution, or, if less than that amount remains in Developer's Total Contribution Value, (ii) Developer shall contribute the remainder of the Total Contribution Value toward the LTA Financial Contribution. If Developer proceeds in the manner described in (b) in this Paragraph, Developer shall not be obligated to construct the LTA Improvement Project. For clarity, in all instances, Developer's Total Contribution Value shall not exceed \$30,000,000, subject to escalation based on the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index.

Each LTA Construction Contribution and LTA Financial Contribution shall be completed or paid, as applicable, in accordance with the Improvements Phasing set forth in the LTA Construction and Financial Contributions table below, which requires that each LTA Construction Contribution be completed in accordance with the corresponding Public Improvement Agreement (PIA). For LTA Improvement Projects that are constructed by Developer, such Improvements are complete upon acceptance by the City, provided, however, that the City adheres to the following timelines and obligations: City agrees to inspect and prepare a punchlist for the LTA Improvement Projects within ten (10) business days of notification by Developer that the Developer considers the construction of the Improvements to be substantially complete; City further agrees to perform its final inspection within ten (10) business days of notification by Developer that all punchlist work has been completed; City will process acceptance documentation (Notice of Completion and Acceptance) within ten (10) business days of the date of City's final inspection or the date upon which the Developer returns to City the appropriate signed acceptance documentation, whichever is later, provided that (a) City finds that all punchlist work has been satisfactorily completed, which determination shall not be unreasonably withheld, (b) Developer has performed and satisfied any and all terms, conditions, and obligations required by any applicable Improvement Agreement prior to acceptance of the Improvements, and (c) Developer has provided the Director of PW with three (3) sets of the Plans ("record plans") corresponding copies of any and all warranties, and the like (such warranties shall be in the name of the City).

City and Developer acknowledge that Developer's construction of an LTA Improvement Project may require acquisition of a right-of-way, easements, and/or receipt of encroachments permits from non-City agencies such as VTA, Caltrans, and/or the County of Santa Clara. If Developer's completion of an LTA Improvement Project is delayed due to such required acquisition(s), easement(s), and/or receipt of non-City permits, or other similar factors outside of Developer's control, Developer and City agree to work in good faith to modify the Improvements Phasing set forth in the LTA Construction and Financial Contributions table. Such Improvements Phasing modifications could allow for the Project to advance into the next Phase ahead of the delayed Improvement(s). However, all LTA Improvements Projects included in the PD Permits for the Project shall be implemented.

LTA Construction and Financial Contributions			
Improvement/Description	LTA Construction Contribution	LTA Financial Contribution	Improvements Phasing
Focused Local Transportation Analysis improvements such as intersection improvements, new signals, at-grade rail crossing modifications and complete street improvements.	\$10,000,000		As necessary based on Focused Local Transportation Analysis (FLTA) findings
Studies: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Connector from the Airport to Stevens Creek Boulevard to Diridon Station Area Santa Clara dedicated public service lane within existing right-of-way from 17th Street to Interstate 880 Transit and light rail improvements within the project area, particularly at San Fernando Street and Delmas Avenue. 		\$1,100,000	Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the earlier of either 1m gsf Office or 1,400 residential units
Feasibility study and concept design of the Bird Avenue/Interstate-280 bicycle and pedestrian multimodal connection from Diridon Station area to Garner community		\$500,000	Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the earlier of either 1m gsf Office or 1,400 residential units
Protected bikeway improvement on Bird Avenue between I-280 and West San Carlos Avenue		\$1,860,000	Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the earlier of either 1m gsf Office or 1,400 residential units
Bird Avenue/Interstate-280 bicycle and pedestrian multimodal connection from Diridon Station area to the Gardener community.		\$4,840,000	Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for 4m gsf Office
Taylor Street and State Route 87 improvements programmed by the City of San Jose and Caltrans.		\$220,000	Temporary Certificate of Occupancy with the last Office building that with completion represents full build out (anticipated to be 7.3m gsf Office)
Goodyear Street and First Street and First Street and Alma Street intersection improvements per the Story-Keys Complete Streets Corridor and Better Bike Plan 2025.		\$490,000	Temporary Certificate of Occupancy with the last Office building that with completion represents full build out (anticipated to be 7.3m gsf Office)
Multimodal and neighborhood transportation management improvements and transit studies at the discretion of the City		\$3,680,000	50% will be paid at Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for 4m gsf Office, the remaining 50% at Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the last Office building that with completion represents full build out (anticipated to be 7.3m gsf Office) otherwise mutually agreed upon by Developer and City
Footbridge over the Los Gatos Creek north of West San Fernando Street	\$3,000,000		Construction completion in accordance with PIA timing for E1
At-grade signalized-trail crossing at West Santa Clara Street and Diridon Station Area.	\$400,000		Construction completion in accordance with PIA timing for E1
Protected bikeway connection along Auzerais Avenue from Los Gatos Creek Trail to Bird Avenue. Does not include project frontage improvements or rail crossing modifications.	\$800,000		Construction completion in accordance with PIA timing for 4m gsf Office or if later, frontage improvements along H3/H
Sidewalk extension under Highway 87 at Auzerais Avenue and Delmas Avenue. Improvements include a bulb-out at the north east quadrant.	\$1,110,000		Construction completion in accordance with PIA timing for coinciding with the last Office building that with completion (anticipated to be 7.3m gsf Office)
Bicycle connection and removal of the pork-chop island at the southwest corner at Coleman Avenue and Taylors Street.	\$2,000,000		Construction completion in accordance with PIA timing for coinciding with the last Office building that with completion (anticipated to be 7.3m gsf Office)

Commented [1]: @bhaveshp@google.com
@amandawolf@google.com

Bhavesh - do you want to delay the contribution here? If so, I think we can make the case to push this to after 4m gsf Office based on the ratio of development build (i.e including the \$10m for FLTAs, the projects at 4m gsf total \$22m - exceeding the % of full build out)

Commented [2R1]: @weinsteinm@google.com
@amandawolf@google.com

Let's just keep it at 4 MSF for 50% and the rest at full build out. Thank you, Marla.

Commented [3R1]: Thanks!
@amandawolf@google.com - can you review the wording?

Subtotal	\$17,310,000	\$12,690,000	
Total	\$30,000,000		